











West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee
Board of Directors Meeting
Meeting Minutes: May 24, 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Kelley: Chair (Hercules); Roy Swearingen: Vice-Chair (Pinole);
Janet Abelson, (El Cerrito); Tom Butt, (Richmond); Chris Peeples (AC Transit); Maureen
Powers, (WestCat); Rita Xavier (San Pablo); John Gioia (County).

STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Valerie Jenkins, Coire Reilly, Leah

Greenblat, Kris Kokotaylo (Legal Counsel)

ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins
Meeting Called to Order: 8:02 am

Public Comment: None.

Consent Calendar: Motion by Director Swearingen; seconded by Director Abelson; motion

passed.

Item # 3. Minutes of April 26, 2019 Board Meeting, Approved.

Item # 4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities, Information only.

Item # 5. Financial Reports for April 2019, Information only.

Item # 6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000. Information only: S 71,501 to Kimley-Horn
for consulting services for the West County Express Bus Implementation Plan.

Item # 7. 2019 STMP Nexus Study Update and Authorization to Use STMP Funds for
Legal Services, Approved allocation of 58,941 of STMP funds.

Item # 8. Fiscal Audit and Memorandum of Internal Control for Fiscal Year 2018,

Approved audit.

ITEM/DISCUSSION

ACTION

Item #9
Richmond Area Community Based
Transportation Plan (CBTP)

Information Only

Martin Engelmann (CCTA) gave an overview of
the CBTP, whose study area covers parts of
Richmond, San Pablo, El Cerrito, and
Unincorporated County. He noted that the
overall purpose of the plan was to determine
what kind of projects could be developed to
improve transportation choices for low income
residents.

3-1




Item #10
Draft Fiscal Year 2020 Work Program,
Budget, and Dues.

John Nemeth (WCCTAC Executive Director)
presented the Draft Fiscal Year 2020 Work
Program, Budget, and Dues and sought approval
to release these to member agencies.

Director Abelson motioned to release the Draft
Fiscal Year 2020 Work Program, Budget, and
Dues to the member agencies; seconded by
Director Peeples

Yes- Chair C. Kelley, Vice-Chair Swearingen, M.
Powers, C. Peeples, J. Abelson, T. Butt, R. Xavier,
J. Gioia

No- None

Abstention-None

Motion passed unanimously

Item #11
New Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP).

Information Only

John Nemeth (WCCTAC Executive Director)
provided an overview of public opinion research
presented by EMC Research at the Authority
meeting on May 15%. He also provided the
Board with a draft concept for allocating funding
for a future TEP and sought Board feedback.

Public Comment: Dave Campbell (Bike East Bay)
stated that he would like to see an additional
3.5% added to the Bike and Pedestrian allocation
in the TEP to make it an even 10%. He added
that the Local Streets and Road category needs
should be zeroed out. He also suggested that a
new measure should tell a compelling story to
voters.

Director Gioia noted that he was uncertain about
the prospects for a new measure given that there
is already an existing transportation sales tax in
place. He expressed support for a category that
allows for contemporary shared mobility
solutions and noted that for transit to be
effective and accessible, the first and last mile
must be easy. He also expressed support for a
category that would fund grade separations.
Lastly, he expressed a willingness to have a
modest amount in local street and road
maintenance, given the availability of other

3-2




sources for that activity and given the need to
fund other priorities.

Director Butt stated that mobility has worsened
in West County since Measure X. He also argued
that West County should make sure that it gets
its fair share and its priorities included in a
measure. He also highlighted the importance of
including funding in the TEP to address problems
near the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge and
Richmond Parkway, despite the fact that there
were some funds included in RM3.

Vice-Chair Swearingen shared his concern about
the prospect of competing tax measure being on
the ballot at the same time.

Director Abelson argued that West County is
distinct and that its priorities can and should be
different than the rest of the County. She
advocated for strong funding to go to mobility
services for the senior and disabled population,
since they are chronically underfunded. She also
advocated for additional transit funding. She
agreed with Dave Campbell (Bike East Bay) and
other Directors about the need for a compelling
story for voters about the transportation needs
of West County.

Chair Kelley stated that people want congestion
relief in the 1-80 corridor and that more funding
needed to go into the transit categories. She
noted that ridership was growing on commuter-
oriented transit services and that express buses
could be popular and effective. She agreed with
other Board members that flexibility was
important in the measure and that the categories
should not be too rigidly defined.

Rita Xavier echoed Director Gioia about the need
to have a category that could fund grade
separations.

Director Peeples stated that transit has been a
focus of recent tax measures and is popular. He

3-3




argued for additional funding in the senior and
disabled category. He noted that there were
other pots of funding for innovative transit and
technology.

Director Powers felt that marketing and public
information was going to be critical for the
measure to garner public support. She also
argued that a future measure needed to be
flexible to deal with future contingencies.

Meeting Adjourned: 9:50am

3-4









https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/WestCoCoExpressBus
https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/672
http://www.511cc.org/youthpass






http://www.511cc.org/trytransit
https://ridegotcha.com/

T affeq (INd TO:¥0 - 6T02/0T/90) Moday 16png AYIUoI - 19
000 88°085'Z- 000 88°085'2- 88'085'C 000 000 000 2RJIPBIN  006TY-02LL-CLL
000 02'€62'T- 000 02's62'T- 02'€62'T 000 000 000 souelnsu| L1 008TY-02..-2LL
000 ov'2€2'2- 000 ov'2gL'C- ov'2€2'C 000 000 000 soueinsul eed  O0VTi-02..-2/.
000 96'686'LE- 000 96'686'LE- 96'686'LE 000 000 000 aouelnsu| OB OTETY-02LL-CLL
000 9/°G/.'9p- 000 9/°6/.'9p- 9/°G/) ' 000 000 000 JUeWelIed SY3d  00ZTi-022.-2/.
Sz 66 7.L7'ZrT 000 66 7.LY'ThT 10'S2S'6.T 00°000°22E 00000'22E 000 ARES  000TY-022.-2.L
INAL OVL1DOM 0zLL
¥8'C Z8'0TS'ST 000 Z8°0TS'ST 8T'/G8'0€S 00'89€91S 00'89€'9¥S 000 suoiteedO DVL1IIM 00.L
¥8¢ 28'0TS'ST 000 28°0TS'ST 8T'/S8'0€S 00'89€°91S 00'89€'9¥S 000 asuedxg
G8's v.°108'S 000 v.°108'S 9Z'26v'€6 00°00<‘66 00'00€‘66 000 soljddns pue aones
09'Lv 8/°09.'C 000 8/°09.'C qT6E0'E 00°008'G 00°008'G 000 ieisbulelL prell  OZEY-00LL-0LL
€,'88 6£'€/8'8 000 6£'€/8'8 19'92T'T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 sesuadx3 uswiedeq [1990S  000WY-00.L-0LL
6T°0C 86'26v' 000 86261 20/8L°T 00'052'22 00'052'2C 000 Bupingey  006EY-00LL-0LL
12°€e- 90'6E6'TT- 000 90'6€6'TT- 90'68E‘€9 00'0S¥'TG 00'0Sv'TS 000 SSOIAJSS [PUOSSAJ0Md  009E-00LL-0LL
V.6 00'0.E 000 00°0/E 00°0EP'E 00'008‘S 00°008‘S 000 xopxBuddiysbunuugssidod  0zSEy-0022-02L
6.8 967, 000 967/ Y0'S22'T 00°000'C 000002 000 abelsod  TOSEY-00L.-0LL
/8TT 697V 000 69V 1E€'G2S'E 00°000't 000007 000 solddns@01J0  00SEY-002L-0LL
YAnr 80°€0.L'6 000 80°€0.'6 Z6'79<'LEY 00'890'Li7y 00890/t 000 slijsuag pue Arefes
000 00'Sv6- 000 00'Sv6- 00'Sv6 000 000 000 souelnsu| uewfodweun  ZT6TY-00LL-0LL
687 91°S6T 000 91°G6T ¥S708'S 00°000't 00°000'7 000 souelnsu| Qe TT6TY-00LL-0LL
000 98'98/- 000 98'98/- 98'98/ 000 000 000 QouRINSUI 9T YOBTY-002L-0LL
000 1T LT 000 1T LT TT.TY 000 000 000 VOld  Z06T¥-00LL-0LL
000 8/'/Ge'e- 000 8/'/Ge'e- 8/°/Ge'S 000 000 000 SeoueINsU| BYIO  TOBT-00LL-0LL
000 L6°€2E - 000 L6°€ZE Y- L6°€2EY 000 000 000 22PN 006TY-00LL-0LL
000 ov'9TL'2- 000 ov'9TL'e- ovr'9TL'C 000 000 000 souelnsu| L1 008TY-00LL-0LL
000 00'529'c- 000 00'529'c- 00'629'E 000 000 000 UOSIA  00STY-002.-0L2
000 OF'6€8'- 000 OV'6£8°E- 0v'6£8'E 000 000 000 ewed  00vTi-00..-0L2
000 GE/2)'T- 000 GE'/2.'T- Ge'/2.'T 000 000 000 aroyieeH IR TTETY-002.-0L2
000 25'528'2S- 000 25'528'2S- 25'528'25 000 000 000 soueinsu| ROIBIN  OTETY-00LL-0LL
000 90°€iZ'65- 000 90'€iZ'65- 90°ErZ'65 000 000 000 WBWRIIBY SH3d  002ZTY-00LL-0LL
Ge'ze LO'STE'EVT 000 LO'STE'EYT £6'25.'66C 00'890‘Siy 00'890'sy 000 Aes  000TY-00LL-0LL
suolreedO OV.LOOM 002
siuewsnipy
IleAY % 9|de|leAy palequinous douel e enpy dlA pasnipy ebpng peidopy uondiiosa@ ,BquinN JUNoXOY
SUGHIMIICT May ___”, YT 3y
6T0Z Jeo A [e3SIH
1T - TO poled
o INd 25:T0:¥ 6TOZ/0T/9 Pelulld
ZA sA|p Bsn
¥ o i,
_.....\... .(V._
b ___
f S
N Jodey 1»bpng Ajyuo N
. 4 JBbpa rRUED

5-1



Z 8fed (INd TO:0 - 6T02/0T/90) Modsy 1.Bpng AlYIWoN - 19
668’0  T0'GZL'866'C 000 T0'S2.'866'C 66'8€0'22T'S 00%9.'02T'9 000 000 le10 asuedx3
av'6e G/ 20T 000 GL'TE0'VTT SZ'9.7'82€ 0060525 0060525 000 s19/0.d [e10eds OV 1OOM ovLL
ar'6e G801 000 6128012 CTAC YA A4 00605215 00'60S2¥S 000 asuedx3
ar'6e GL2E0'YT 000 GL2E0'YT CTAC VA4 0060525 00'60S2¥S 000 so1|ddng pue d1nRS
A z8'r8e'eee 000 z8v8e'eee 8T'¥2T'602 0060525 00'6052¥S 000 esusdx3 Juewiredeq [108dS  000VY-Ov.LL-V.L
000 G9°/€8'/TT- 000 G9'/€8'/TT- G9'/€8'/TT 000 000 000 SSOINRS [UOSSBI0Id  009EY-OvLL-v/L
000 Y YIS'T- 000 Y YIST T YIST 000 000 000 selddnsS 80O 00SEV-OVLL-VLL
s19/04d [e1eds OV 1OIM ovlL
99°65 €6'/58'0/9'C 000 €6'158'0/9°C 10°928'508'T 00789'9LY'y 00789'9L¥'Y 000 dN1S 0L
99'65 £6'/58'0/9'C 000 £6'258'0/9°C 10'928'508'T 00789'9LY'y 00789'9/¥'Y 000 ssuedx3
1265 £6°/58'029'C 000 £6°258'029°C 10'928'508'T 00789'92' ¥ 00%89'92v'y 000 se1|ddng pue 8RS
1185 £6'66€'505°C 000 £6'66€'505°C 10°928'508'T 00'92Z'TIE Y 0092Z'TIEY 000 esusdx3 Juewiredeq 108dS  000VY-0SLL-ELL
0000T  00'8SV'STT 000 00'8SK'STT 000 00'8SK'GTT 00'8SF'STT 000 SSOINRS [BUOSSBJO0Id  009EV-0€LL-ELL
0000T  00°000°0S 000 00°000°0S 000 00°000°0S 00°000'0S 000 shpueg pue Arefes
0000T  00°000°05 000 00°000°05 000 00°000°05 00°000°05 000 AeES  000TV-0ELL-€LL
dN1S 0L
TL.T TG'€2€'86 000 TG'€2€'86 617°6/8'9G1 00'€02'SSS 00€02'SSS 000 INQL OV1OOM 0zLL
1107 15'€2€'86 000 15'€2€'86 6Y°6.8'9Gk 00°€02'S5S 00'€0Z'SSS 000 asuedx3
vTze 86°TV.'0G 000 86°TV.'0G 20°TOV'8LT 00°€02'622 00€02'62Z 000 so1|ddng pue 81N RS
299€ 65508 000 G5'G08 SYYee'T 000022 000022 000 yersBurell prell  0ZEvy-02LL-2LL
zree S6°ETZ'TS 000 S6'€TZ'TS S0'689'6. 00°€06°0ET 00'€06'0ET 000 sesuedx3 uewredeq e08dS  000VY-02.L-2LL
98'6T 60°69€'Y 000 60'69€'y 16'0£9'2T 0000022 0000022 000 Buipjingiiey  006EY-02.L-2LL
Ly0z- 90vET'0T- 000 90'vET'0T- 90'7€9'65 00°005'6% 00°005'6Y 000 SSOINRS [BUOSSBJ0Id  009EV-02.L-2LL
€5°TC 99°er8'Y 000 99°€r8'Y ¥£'999'/T 0000522 0000522 000 xolexBuiddiysbunundsaidod  0zSer-02..-2LL
0000T  0000T'T 000 00°00T'T 000 00°00T‘T 00°00T'T 000 ofelsod NAL  20SEv-02.L-TLL
000 Tv'29.- 000 Tv'29.- Tv'29L 000 000 000 oflelsod NQL  TOSEV-02..-CLL
e 0Z'TEZ 000 0Z'TEC 08'89. 00000'T 00°000'T 000 selddns 80O 00SEV-02LL-2LL
000 00'526- 000 00'G26- 00'S26 000 000 000 suonduosgnssdiysiequBIN - 00€EY-022L-2LL
09T €5°T8G'LY 000 €5°T8G LY Ly'8TY'8/2 00°000'92€ 00000'92€ 000 slpueg pue Arefes
68 or'S6T 000 or'S6T ¥S708'e 000007 00000 000 souveinsu| Al TT6TY-02LL-CLL
000 ¥6'€GE- 000 ¥6°€5€- ¥6'€SE 000 000 000 souelnsu| 8yl Y06TY-02LL-TLL
000 8/°/Sg'e- 000 8/°/SE'E- 8L°/SE'e 000 000 000 seouelnsu| Y0 TOBTY-02..-2LL
Siewsnipy
IleAY % d|de|leAy pa lequinoug douelre enpy dlA pasnipy 1ebpng paidopy uondiossg ,BguinN JUNoXOY

5-2



El Cerrito

Hercules

Pinole

Richmond

San Pablo

Contra Costa
County

AC Transit

BART

WestCAT

wcoccrnc

June 20, 2019

West Contra Costa City Managers/
Contra Costa County Administrator/
WCCTAC TAC Members

RE: Transition to the New Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP)

Dear City Managers, County Administrator, and WCCTAC TAC Members:

Thank you for your assistance in facilitating the recent approval, by all six jurisdictions, in
West County of the 2019 Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) Update. Per
the new Master Cooperative Agreement and ordinances, the new program becomes
effective July 1, 2019. Your agency should begin collecting the new fee rates on that date

for building permits issued for new development.

STMP quarterly reporting forms for FY 18-19 Q4 and all STMP fees collected before July 1, 2019
must be remitted to WCCTAC by July 31, 2019.

Effective July 1, 2019, the STMP fees and categories will be:

. STMP Fee per
Type of Fee STMP Fee per Unit
Square Foot

Single Family $5,439

Multi Family $ 2,679

Senior Housing S 1,469

Hotel (per room) $ 3,481

Retail / Service $6.59
Office $8.72
Industrial $5.56
Storage Facility $0.76
Other (per AM peak hour trip) | $ 7,350

7-1



The following are included in this email:

e The new STMP Quarterly Reporting Form, which your staff should always complete
whether or not STMP fees were collected during a given reporting period. To better
track collected fees, the new form requires that each development project be listed
separately. The forms are due no later than 30 days after the end of a quarter;

e Therecently adopted Administrative Guidelines, which are intended to serve as a handy
reference for local staff;

e A link to the STMP page on the WCCTAC website
(https://www.wcctac.org/app pages/view/210). This is a useful link to share with
members of the public who may have questions about the STMP. The 2019 STMP
Update Report and other reference documents will also be posted on the website;

An original set of the signed Master Cooperative Agreement will be provided to your WCCTAC
TAC member once all signatories have submitted their documents.

WCCTAC recognizes that several of your local staff members may be involved in the collecting,
remitting, and reporting of STMP related development activity. Please share this email and its
attachments with relevant engineering, planning, finance, and clerical staff that will be
responsible for implementing and managing the 2019 STMP Update.

Should you have any questions, please contact Leah Greenblat, Project Manager, at
LGREENBLAT@wcctac.org or 510.210.5935.

Thank you again for your on-going cooperation and support in implementing the STMP.
Sincerely,

%%Mf:

John Nemeth
Executive Director, WCCTAC

Page 2 of 2

7-2


https://www.wcctac.org/app_pages/view/210
mailto:LGREENBLAT@wcctac.org

El Cerrito

Hercules

Pinole

Richmond

San Pablo

Contra Costa
County

AC Transit

BART

WestCAT

WwcCcrnc

June 22, 2019

Lina Velasco, Planning and Building Services Director
City of Richmond, Planning Division

450 Civic Center Plaza

Richmond, CA 94804

RE: STMP Fee Credit for Right-of-Way Dedication at 5620 Central Ave.

Dear Ms. Velasco:

Thank you for contacting WCCTAC regarding the possibility of a STMP fee credit for a right-of-
way dedication from the property owner of 5620 Central Ave. The property owner is proposing
46 dwelling units on the site. The proposed project would generate $119,370 in STMP fees under
the current STMP program. The subject property is adjacent to the 1-80/Central Avenue
Interchange Project, which is a long-standing priority project in Contra Costa County.

Per both the 2006 and 2019 STMP Master Cooperative Agreements, a developer may receive
credit against STMP fees for the dedication of land if 1) the dedication is related to a STMP
project, and 2) the dedication is beyond that which would otherwise be required for approval of
the proposed development. The I-80/Central Avenue Interchange Project is eligible for STMP
funds under both the 2006 STMP program and the updated 2019 STMP program, so the first
criterion is met.

Based on the information you provided, we understand that the property owner previously
dedicated land to the City of Richmond for the Interchange Project based on the amount of right-
of-way shown in a 2009 CCTA Feasibility Study and at that time, the developer also entered into
a development agreement with the City of Richmond.

Subsequently, the State of California’s storm water regulations changed, which now necessitates
additional right-of-way to construct a bio-swale to treat street run-off as part of the I-80/Central
Avenue Interchange Project. The additional right-of-way will also allow for the relocation of a bus
pullout to a better location for bicycle, pedestrian, and vehicle safety. This additional property
must be acquired by the public through a purchase, eminent domain, or a developer dedication.

8-1



The City of Richmond, which is taking a lead role in the 1-80/Central Ave. Interchange project
implementation, does not have available project funds to purchase the additionally needed right-
of-way. Itis our understanding that the developer is willing to dedicate the additional land to the
City in exchange for a STMP credit.

Given the circumstances, it appears that the land that could be dedicated by the developer to
facilitate the Central Ave. project goes beyond that which would be ordinarily required for
approval of a development. As such, it appears also to meet the second criterion for a developer
credit.

WCCTAC staff therefore supports the City of Richmond’s proposal to offer a STMP fee credit, not
to exceed $119,370 in value, towards the future housing development of 5620 Central Ave. In
return, the developer would provide a dedication of additional permanent right-of-way needed
to construct bio-swales and relocate a bus pullout as well as for the temporary construction
easements, as shown on the attached Right-of-Way Exhibit, dated June 2019.

Thank you for working with WCCTAC staff to evaluate and resolve this situation. Please feel free
to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

John Nemeth
Executive Director, WCCTAC

Page 2 of 2

8-2



Wwccrnc

TO: WCCTAC TAC MEETING DATE: June 28, 2019
FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director
RE: Appointments for West County Positions on the CCTA’s Countywide Bicycle and

Pedestrian Advisory Committee (CBPAC)

REQUESTED ACTION
Appoint Coire Reilly as the staff representative to the CBPAC and Leah Greenblat as the
alternate staff representative.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The CCTA recently notified WCCTAC that the two-year terms have expired for its West County
representatives to the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (CBPAC). The
CBPAC is composed of both RTPC staff and citizen representatives.

Joanna Pallock has served on the CBPAC as the WCCTAC staff representative for the past eight
years. She is stepping down from this role. At the June 13 TAC meeting, the TAC recommended
Coire Reilly to replace her and Leah Greenblat to serve as the WCCTAC staff alternate.

WCCTAC is seeking nominations for the citizen representative to the CBPAC and has solicited
the assistance of its member agencies. Currently, that position is held by Richmond resident,
Bill Pinkham. Mr. Pinkham has expressed interest in retaining his role on the CBPAC.
Recommendations for the citizen representative are expected to be brought to the WCCTAC
TAC who will make a recommendation to the WCCTAC Board at its July 26™ Board meeting.

9-1






wccrnc

TO: WCCTAC Board DATE: June 28,2019
FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director

RE: Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Work Program, Budget, and Dues

REQUESTED ACTION

Approve Resolution 18-06: FY 2019-2020 Work Program, Budget, and Member Agency Dues.

DISCUSSION

On May 24, 2019, the WCCTAC Board approved the subject documents for circulation and
review by member agencies. Staff did not receive any comments and the documents remain
unchanged from the drafts.

Attachments:

A: Resolution 19-06

B: FY 2020 Work Program

C: FY 2020 Budget

D: FY 2020 Member Agency Dues Schedule

10-1






WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE
RESOLUTION 19-06

ADOPTION OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 WORK PROGRAM, BUDGET, AND
MEMBER DUES

WHEREAS, the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (“WCCTAC”) is a
joint exercise of powers authority formed pursuant to Government Code Section 6500, et. seq. by
and between the City of El Cerrito, the City of Hercules, the City of Pinole, the City of
Richmond, the City of San Pablo, Contra Costa County, Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
(“AC Transit”), San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit (“BART”), and West Contra Costa
Transit Authority (“WestCAT”); and

WHEREAS, the WCCTAC Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) authorizes
WCCTAC to: annually adopt a work program along with a budget setting forth all operational
expenses, together with an apportionment of expenses allocated to each member agency; make
and enter into contracts; apply for and accept grants; develop and administer the Transportation
Demand Management (“TDM”) Program; and act as fiscal agent for the Subregional
Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (“STMP”); and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 proposed work program, budget, and member agency
dues were circulated for review by the member agencies, and all comments received were duly
noted and addressed.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of
WCCTAC adopts the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 work program, budget, and member agency dues,
and as shown in the attachments to this Resolution, which are incorporated herein by reference.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the WCCTAC Board at a regular meeting on June 28,
2019 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
By:
Chris Kelley, Chair
Attest:

John Nemeth, Executive Director

Approved as to Form:
Kristopher J. Kokotaylo, General Counsel

10A-1






WCCTACFISCAL YEAR
2020 DRAFT WORK
PROGRAM

WCCTAC's activities may be grouped into the following five major areas: Planning and
Programming (General Operations), Special Projects, Transportation Demand Management
(TDM), Sub-regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP), and Office Administration.

Planning and Programming (General Operations)

This program area relates to WCCTAC's function as the Regional Transportation Planning
Committee (RTPC) for West Contra Costa County under Measure J. It also includes
transportation planning efforts resulting from the agency’s Joint Powers Agency function.
Activities in this program area are mainly funded with annual member agency contributions
and, to a small extent, Measure J dollars.

MEASURE J PROGRAMMING
1. Program and administer West County’s Measure J projects and programs, including:
a. Low Income Student Bus Pass Program (Measure J 21b)
Additional Bus Transit Enhancements (Measure J 19b)
Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities (Measure J 15b, 20b)
Sub-regional needs (Measure J 28b)

oo o

REGIONAL PLANNING AND FUNDING
2. Participate in regional, countywide, sub-regional, and local efforts related to
planning, funding and delivery of priority capital projects in West County.

3. Provide support for the development of a Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) for a
possible future county-wide ballot measure.

4. Work with CCTA on: project prioritization for Plan Bay Area 2050, the Congestion
Management Plan’s Capital Improvement Program, the STIP Call for Projects, the shift

from LOS to VMT in the Authority’s Technical Procedures, and PDA assessment.

5. Monitor Action Plan compliance by reviewing General Plans or Amendments, and work
to advance goals, objectives and actions within the Action Plan.

1-80 CORRIDOR
6. Participate in follow-up, evaluation, trouble-shooting, and TAC meetings related to the

Integrated Corridor Mobility (ICM) project.

7. Finalize the scope and pursue launch of a study to address 1-80 HOV lane degradation
and overall functionality with CCTA, Caltrans, and MTC.

8. Provide quarterly updates to the WCCTAC Board on 1-80 issues.

10B-1



OTHER SUB-REGIONAL ACTIVITIES
9. Continue working with CCTA and ACTC and local jurisdictions towards completion of
the San Pablo Avenue Multimodal Corridor Study.

10. Continue advancement of recommendations of the High Capacity Transit Study.

11. Based on the 2015 Cooperative Agreement, participate with WETA, CCTA and
Richmond on annual review of the Richmond ferry’s ridership, marketing, fare policy,
access issues, and capital needs.

GRANTS
12. Monitor grant opportunities, inform members about these opportunities, assist with
grant applications, and facilitate prioritization of West County candidate projects for
grants. Some examples of grant opportunities in the upcoming fiscal year include
Active Transportation Program (ATP) grants for pedestrian and bicycle improvements,
as well as federal 5310 grants for senior and disabled transportation.

FORMAL BODIES
13. Manage or participate in meetings of the: WCCTAC Board, WCCTAC TAC, I-80 Smart
Corridor TAC, CCTA Board, CCTA Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory
Committee (CBPAC), CCTA Administration and Projects Committee (APC), CCTA
Paratransit Coordinating Committee (PCC), CCTA Technical Coordinating Committee
(TCC), and the Caltrans District 4 Pedestrian Advisory Committee.

Special Projects

As a Joint Powers Agency, WCCTAC is able to apply for and receive various grants that
advance the transportation goals of West Contra Costa. WCCTAC can also serve as a lead
for certain studies or projects usingother agency contributions. In the upcoming fiscal year,
WCCTAC will:

1. Continue the West Contra Costa County Express Bus Implementation Plan, a
partnership with AC Transit and WestCAT, funded by a Caltrans SB1 grant.

2. Complete the grant-funded, multi-jurisdictional Program for System Synchronization
(PASS) project to improve signal timing during weekends and off-peak times on San
Pablo Avenue.

3. Implement a Travel Training Program funded under a one-time allocation of Measure J
28b funds. The main goals include:

a. Develop and implement the West County Travel Training program. Meet with
groups and individuals on how to use fixed route transit (BART, buses, ferry), ADA
and non-ADA paratransit, and other mobility services.

b. Seek additional funding from possible 5310 grant in the 2019 cycle.

10B-2



Transportation Demand Management (TDM)

This program promotes transportation alternatives to the single occupant vehicle by
encouraging walking, bicycling, transit, carpooling, and vanpooling, and is coordinated with
the larger countywide 511 Contra Costa Program. It is funded on a reimbursement basis by
Measure J and grants from the Air District. In the upcoming fiscal year, the TDM program will:

1. Manage the Commute Incentives Program, which includes: employer outreach and
programs, tabling at community events, transit incentives, funding for bike racks
and lockers, funding for EV charging stations, the “Pass 2 Class” student transit
ticket program. Staff will also explore smartphone app-based incentive programs,
such as “Miles”.

2. Manage the Countywide Guaranteed Ride Home and Try Transit Programs.
3. Co-lead Bike to Work Day with other regional partners
4. Coordinate with the Regional 511 Rideshare and 511 Contra Costa.

5. Support Local Agency Climate Action plans and other plans and efforts that aim to
improve access to bicycling, pedestrian facilities, transit, and emerging mobility
technology such as a shared bicycles and cars, electric bicycles, scooters, and
autonomous vehicles.

6. Work with community groups and employers to explore the feasibility of providing
bicycle repair education classes and bicycle safety awareness to increase bicycling as a
viable mode of transportation.

7. Implement relevant recommendations of the Countywide TDM Strategic Plan.

Sub-regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP)

WCCTAC acts as the trustee for the development impact fees collected by the West County
cities and the unincorporated areas of the County. An updated program is planned to go into
effect on July 1, 2019. Under the updated program, STMP funds are to be used for twenty pre-
identified, regionally-benefitting capital projects. In the upcoming fiscal year, WCCTAC will:

1. Finalize the updated 2019 STMP Program.
2. Collect, administer, and track funds and reporting forms.

3. Provide quarterly monitoring reports on revenue collected and status of local
reporting.

4. Potentially issue calls for projects based on the fund balance and Board direction, and
disburse funds to eligible, Board-approved projects.

10B-3



5. Issue the Annual Report for FY18-19
6. Oversee contractual agreements with fund recipients.
7. Respond to inquiries from local agencies.

Office Administration
In the upcoming fiscal year, staff will:

1. Complete the Annual Work Program, Budget and Audit.

2. Provide staff development and training opportunities to keep employees skills high and
to stay aware of industry trends.

3. Maintain, update, and expand content on the WCCTAC website.

4. Develop a Procurement Policy for equipment and services purchased by WCCTAC.

5. Formalize WCCTAC's Conflict of Interest Code for staff and Directors.

10B-4



SUMMARY OF ALL ACCOUNTS
FY 2019-2020 DRAFT Final Budget

.. Actual Original Estimated Proposed
Activity Note
FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
REVENUES
33403 Grants (TDM) 513,664 555,203 555,203 559,247
34111 Member Contributions 455,932 502,981 502,979 523,670
343xx STMP Fees 2,000,731 2,531,000 1,735,193 3,485,879
36102 Interest 313 - 250 -
39906 Other Grants 270,244 557,509 323,625 625,633
Measure J 20b, 21b, 28b 29,000 29,000 49,100 76,106
TOTAL REVENUES 3,269,884 4,175,693 3,166,350 5,270,535
EXPENSES
Salary, Benefits & Insurance
41000s Salary & Benefits 750,510 815,068 799,623 867,898
41911 Liability Insurance 7,282 8,000 7,610 8,100
Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 757,792 823,068 807,233 875,998
Professional Services
43600 Professional Services
Financial and IT Services 45,418 42,450 46,181 45,025
Audit 16,598 17,450 17,443 12,500
Attorney Services 12,185 19,000 22,283 14,800
Accounting Services 6,727 10,500 8,220 10,000
Nexus Study (STMP) - 115,458 114,831 -
Program Related Services (TDM) 15,777 21,500 36,536 40,000
Other 1,986 - 1,377 -
Total Professional Services 98,691 226,358 246,871 122,325
Special Expenses (Project / Program Funding)
44000 Special Dept. Expense
Incentives / Marketing (TDM) 98,840 130,903 79,116 125,647
Misc. STMP Project Funding 240,997 4,311,226 1,714,045 3,120,000
Student Bus Pass Program - WCCUSD 46,713 70,862 63,625 72,803
Student Bus Pass Program - J Swett 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Needs Assesment (Senior/disabled) 75,000 - - -
Express Bus Implementation Plan - 361,827 142,657 535,173
San Pablo Ave Corridor Study - 50,000 - -
High Capacity Transit Study 88,531 - - -
Contingency (WCCTAC Operations) (132) 10,000 184 10,000
Total Special Expenses 609,949 4,994,818 2,059,627 3,923,623
Travel & Training
44320 Travel/Training/Mileage/Mbrshp 6,270 8,000 5,619 7,200
Total Travel/Training 6,270 8,000 5,619 7,200
Office Expenses & Supplies
43500 Office Supplies 4,689 5,000 4,360 5,000
43501 Postage 1,348 2,000 1,425 1,800
43502 TDM Postage 219 1,100 418 1,500
43520 Printing, Copier Lease 9,418 26,300 23,577 26,550
43900 Rent/Building 42,364 44,250 42,372 47,800
Total Office Exp & Supplies 58,038 78,650 72,152 82,650
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,530,740 6,130,894 3,191,502 5,011,796
REVENUES - EXPENSES 1,739,144 (1,955,201) (25,152) 258,739
Beginning Fund Balance 3,818,036
Ending Fund Balance 4,076,775

Notes:

See notes in the attached detail sheets by account.

10C-1



DETAIL: WCCTAC Operations
FY 2019-20 DRAFT Final Budget

.. Actual FY Original FY Estimated Proposed
Activity Notes
2017-2018 2018-2019 2018-2019 2019-2020
REVENUES
34111 Member Contributions 455,932 502,979 502,979 523,670 (a)
36102 Interest - LAIF 313 - 250 -
39906 Other - Measure J (20b & 21b) 29,000 29,000 29,000 30,706 (b)
Other - Measure J 28b - - 20,100 45,400 (c)
SB1 Grant - staff time - 15,000 - 15,000 (d)
TOTAL REVENUES 485,245 546,979 552,329 614,776
EXPENSES
Salary, Benefits & Insurance
41000s Salary & Benefits 441,097 443,068 449,174 507,448 (e)
41911 Liability Insurance 3,641 4,000 3,805 4,050
Total Salaries, Benefits & Insurance 444,738 447,068 452,979 511,498
Professional Services
43600 Professional Services
Financial - City of San Pablo 16,869 17,450 17,443 18,025
IT / VOIP phone 5,730 4,000 5,919 6,000
Audit 16,598 7,500 11,950 12,500
Attorney Services 12,185 18,000 12,936 13,800 (f)
Accounting Services 3,363 4,500 3,679 4,000
Other 1,986 - 1,377 -
Total Professional Services 56,731 51,450 53,304 54,325
Special Department Expenses
44000 Special Dept. Expense
Contingency (132) 10,000 184 10,000 (g)
Total Special Department Expenses (132) 10,000 184 10,000
Training & Mileage
44320 Training/Mileage 3,840 5,800 3,430 5,000
Total Training/Mileage 3,840 5,800 3,430 5,000
Office Expenses & Supplies
43500 Office Supplies 3,848 4,000 3,438 4,000
43501 Postage 1,348 2,000 1,425 1,800
43520 Printing, Copier Lease 3,455 3,800 3,830 4,050
43900 Rent/Building 21,311 22,250 23,073 23,900
Total Office Expense & Supplies 29,962 32,050 31,766 33,750
TOTAL EXPENSES 535,139 546,368 541,663 614,573
REVENUES - EXPENSES (49,894) 611 10,666 203
Beginning Fund Balance $151,843
Ending Fund Balance $152,046
Reserve - Undesignated $120,000
Reserve - Accumulated Vacation $20,000
Available Balance above Reserve $12,046

Notes:
(@)  FY 19 dues are proposed to increase by 4.0%.
b) A portion of Measure J program funds can be used to cover administative expenses.
) Funds programmed by the Board for Travel Training work.
(d) A portion of state grant funds (Express Bus Implementation Plan) can cover staff time.
) Includes new Travel Training Coordinator, 3.5% COLA.
FY 18-19 figure subject to Board approval of May agenda item #7.
Contingency per Board Reserve Policy.

o

P
e=3

10C-2



DETAIL: TDM
FY 2019-20 DRAFT Final Budget

.. Actual Original Estimated Proposed
Activity Note
2017-2018 2018-2019 2018-2019 2019-2020
REVENUES
33403 Grants 513,664 555,203 555,203 559,247
36102 Interest - LAIF - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 513,664 555,203 555,203 559,247
EXPENSES
Salary, Benefits & Insurance
41000s Salary & Benefits 305,219 322,000 300,449 310,450
41911 Liability Insurance 3,641 4,000 3,805 4,050
Total Salaries, Benefits, and Insurance 308,860 326,000 304,254 314,500
Professional Services
43600 Professional Services
Financial and IT Services 22,819 21,000 22,819 21,000
Audit - - - -
Attorney Services - 1,000 406 1,000
Accounting Services 3,364 6,000 4,541 6,000
Program-related services 15,777 21,500 36,526 40,000 (a)
Other - - - -
Total Professional Services 41,960 49,500 64,292 68,000
TDM Program Work
44000 Program Expenses
Commute Incentives / Marketing 98,840 130,903 79,116 125,647 (b)
Total TDM Program Work 98,840 130,903 79,116 125,647
Travel & Training
44320 Travel/Training/Mileage/Membershp 2,430 2,200 2,189 2,200
Total Travel/Training 2,430 2,200 2,189 2,200
Office Expenses & Supplies
43500 Office Supplies 841 1,000 922 1,000
43502 TDM Postage 219 1,100 418 1,500
43520 Printing, Copier Lease 5,963 22,500 19,747 22,500
43900 Rent / Building 21,053 22,000 19,299 23,900
Total Office Exp & Supplies 28,076 46,600 40,386 48,900
TOTAL EXPENSES 480,166 555,203 490,237 559,247
REVENUES - EXPENSES 33,498 - 64,966 -
Beginning Fund Balance 0
Ending Fund Balance 0

Notes:

(@)  Some TDM budget is shifting to program-related services.

(b)  TDM Program aiming to provide more incentives in the next fiscal year.

10C-3



DETAIL: STMP
FY 2019-20 DRAFT Final Budget

.. Actual FY Original FY Estimated Proposed
Activity Note
2017-2018 2018-2019 2018-2019 FY2019-20
REVENUES
34310 County STMP Fees 1,104,535 43,500 75,637 250,000
34315 El Cerrito STMP Fees 78,057 1,185,000 2,595 1,485,827
34320 Hercules STMP Fees 501,747 1,000,000 570,480 350,000
34325 Pinole STMP Fees 37,396 12,500 48,090 60,000
34330 Richmond STMP Fees 231,910 250,000 984,269 1,265,052
34335 San Pablo STMP Fees 47,085 40,000 54,122 75,000
36102 Interest - LAIF - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 2,000,731 2,531,000 1,735,193 3,485,879 (a)
EXPENSES
Salary & Benefits
41000s Salary & Benefits (STMP Admin) 4,194 50,000 50,000 50,000 (b)
Total Salaries and Benefits 4,194 50,000 50,000 50,000
Funding of STMP Projects
43600 Prof. Services
Nexus Study and Strategic Plan - 115,458 114,831 -
Legal Services 8,941 (c)
Other - - - -
Total Prof. Services - 115,458 123,772 -
44000 Project Funding -
BART - Del Norte Modernization 57 1,000,000 978,045 500,000
Nexus Study and Strategic Plan 148,680 - - -
Hercules - Path to Transit 92,260 11,226 - -
Hercules - Ph.3 Design - - - 750,000
El Cerrito - Ohlone Greenway - 300,000 300,000 -
1-80 San Pablo Dam Road Interchange - - 436,000 -
San Pablo Dam Rd. Sidewalk - - - 270,000
San Pablo Ave. Bridge Replacement - - - 800,000
Bay Trail Gap at Tennent Ave. - - - 100,000
I-80/Central Ave. Ph.2 - - - 700,000
Other Miscellaneous Projects - 3,000,000 - -
Total Project Funding 240,997 4,311,226 1,714,045 3,120,000
TOTAL EXPENSES 245,191 4,476,684 1,887,817 3,170,000
REVENUES - EXPENSES 1,755,540 | (1,945,684) (152,624) 315,879
Beginning Fund Balance 3,666,193
Ending Fund Balance 3,982,072

Notes:

(@)  STMP receipts are forecasted to be strong based on local jurisdiction estimates and updated fee schedule.
(b)  Expenses are for costs to administer the program.
(c)  FY 18-19 figure subject to Board approval of May agenda item #7.

10C-4



DETAIL: Other Reimbursable

FY 2019-20 DRAFT Final Budget

.. Actual FY Original FY | Estimated FY | Proposed FY
Activity Note
2017-18 2018-19 2018-2019 2019-20
REVENUES
33403 Grants
36102 Interest - LAIF
39906 Other Grants
Student Bus Pass Admin, WCCUSD 46,713 70,682 63,625 72,803
Student Bus Pass Program - J Swett 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Needs Assesment Study (senior/disable 75,000 - - -
SB1 Express Bus Grant - 315,000 200,000 462,830
SB1 Express Bus Cash Match - 46,827 - 15,000
San Pablo Ave. Corridor Study - 50,000 - - (a)
High Capacity Transit Study (28b) 72,551 - - -
High Capacity Transit Study (BART) - - - -
High Capacity Transit Study (CCTA) 11,985 - - -
High Capacity Transit Study (MTC) 3,995 - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 270,244 542,509 323,625 610,633
EXPENSES
Special Project Expenses
43600 Professional Services - - - -
Total Professional Services - - - -
44000 Projects
Student Bus Pass Admin, WCCUSD 46,713 70,682 63,625 72,803
Student Bus Pass Program - J Swett 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Needs Assesment (senior/disabled) 75,000 - - -
Express Bus Implementation Plan - 361,827 142,657 535,173
San Pablo Ave. Corridor Study - 50,000 - - (a)
High Capacity Transit Study 88,531 - - -
Total Special Project Expenses 270,244 542,509 266,282 667,976
TOTAL EXPENSES 270,244 542,509 266,282 667,976
REVENUES - EXPENSES - - 57,343 (57,343)

Notes:

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

(@)  Funds from Meausre J 28b, budgeted in FY19, will be paid directly to ACTC by CCTA.

(0)

10C-5






DRAFT FINAL
FY2020 DUES STRUCTURE

Proposed

WCCTAC Member Agency Percent Share FY 20 Dues
City of El Cerrito 9.1% $48,930
City of Hercules 9.1% $48,930
City of Pinole 9.1% $48,930
City of Richmond 27.2% $146,790
City of San Pablo 9.1% $48,930
Contra Costa County 9.1% $48,930
AC Transit 9.1% $48,930
BART 9.1% $48,930
WestCAT 9.1% 548,930
discount (514,560)
WestCAT Subtotal $34,370
Total 100.0% $523,670

Recent Dues History

For a Regular 9.1% Share Member:

Fiscal Year Dues Amount
FY 10-11 $42,772
FY 11-12 $42,722
FY 12-13 $36,675
FY 13-14 $25,482
FY 14-15 $36,675
FY 15-16 $36,675
FY 16-17 $39,975
FY 17-18 $42,772
FY 18-19 $47,049

10D-1



















































































































































This Page Intentionally Blank



El Cerrito

Hercules

Pinole

Richmond

San Pablo

Contra Costa
County

AC Transit

BART

WestCAT

WwcCcrnc

May 29, 2019

Mr. Randell lwasaki, Executive Director
Contra Costa Transportation Authority
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100

Walnut Creek, CA 94597

RE: May WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary
Dear Randy:

The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on May 24, 2019, took the following actions that may
be of interest to CCTA:

1. Approved the Basic Financial Statements and Memorandum of Internal Control
for the Fiscal Year 2018 audit.

2. Received a presentation from Marin Engelmann on the Richmond Area
Community Based Transportation Plan.

3. Approved the draft Fiscal Year 2020 Work Program, Budget, and Dues for release
to member agencies.

4. Discussed the Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) being developed by CCTA
and considered its preference for funding allocations by category.

Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions.
Sincerely,

O T Lrild

John Nemeth
Executive Director

cc: Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN; Lisa
Bobadilla, SWAT; Matt Todd, CCTA

14a-1






Wwccrnc

ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.

ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments

ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act

APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA)
ATP: Active Transportation Program

AV: Autonomous Vehicle

BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority

BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority

CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act

CIL: Center for Independent Living

CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies

CMAAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund)
CMP: Congestion Management Program

CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan

CTC: California Transportation Commission

CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report

EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District

EIR: Environmental Impact Report

EIS: Environmental Impact Statement

EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals)
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration

FTA: Federal Transit Administration

FY: Fiscal Year

HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane

ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility

ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center

ITS: Intelligent Transportations System

LOS: Level of Service (traffic)

MOU: Memorandum of Understanding

MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization

MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective

14b-1



NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act

O&M: Operations and Maintenance

OBAG: One Bay Area Grant

PAC: Policy Advisory Committee

PASS: Program for Arterial System Synchronization

PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities

PC: Planning Committee (CCTA)

PCC: Paratransit Coordinating Committee (CCTA)

PDA: Priority Development Areas

PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans)

RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG)

RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center

RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program

RTP: Regional Transportation Plan

RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee

SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy

SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer

SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle

STA: State Transit Assistance

STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program

STMP: Subregional Transportation Mitigation Plan

SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee

TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA)

TDA: Transit Development Act funds

TDM: Transportation Demand Management

TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air

TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan

TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities

TOD: Transit Oriented Development

TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses)

VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled

WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee
WETA: Water Emergency Transportation Agency

14b-2



	wa 06-28-19 FINAL
	Minutes May 24 2019draftvj
	ED Report 06.28.19
	CBPAC Nominations- Staff Report
	WCCTAC P11-19 Budget Report Monthly
	2020 DRAFT Work Program - draftfinal-jn.pdf
	WCCTAC FISCAL YEAR 2020 DRAFT WORK PROGRAM
	Planning and Programming (General Operations)
	Transportation Demand Management (TDM)
	Sub-regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (STMP)
	Office Administration

	Richmond Central Ave- ROW Exhibit_San Mateo_.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Exhibit C


	TEP Policy Attachment.pdf
	Attachment A
	Attachment B




